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Qs John pehle, you were during the second world war assistant
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to Henry Morgenthay Jr. who was secretary of the Treasury,
and you were personally the director of the Foreign Fundsg
Control Division.

That is correct.

sssbLater on, in Hanuary 2934, you were appointed by the
president Roosevelt, you were appointed the emecutive direct
of the War Refugee Board, which was a special agency created
to help the Jews who were in danger of destruction in Europe
or who were actually destroyed. Well, this seems to be s
very strange story. How does one come from the Ireasury and
from the Foreign Funds Control Division to this fery special
task, and I know that it is s long story, but we have to toy
t0.e4t%0 go into it in order to explain how it happened,.
Well, the WRB was established merely because of the Treasury
Department, although the Treasury had no jurisdiction in
fefugee matters, which were entirely supposed to be handled
by the State Department. But the Treasury Department, parti-
cularly the people in the Foreign Funds Control, came Kpon
some facts with begard to the handling of refugee matters
that were so shocking that they were brouzht by us to the
attention of Secretary Morgenthap and he in turn went to
President Rossevelt and brought thése facts to the Presfident
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attention, and the result was the establishemnt by exédcutive
order of the WRB in Janmary 1944.

Yes, and what was the specific task of the WRB? I think that
there was an ordey which established the board?

Yes.

Could explain in few words..

- Well, the most important thing about the WRB was that drama—

tically changed the policy of the US overnight. B_fore the
board was established, nothing really was being done to help
Jews who wer: being destroyed in Germany znd occupied areas.
With the establishmmmt of the board it became the palicy of
the US to do whatever could be done, consistent with the war
effort, to help people escape, to help private agencies who
were pperating in the area,to facilitate the transmissiong
of funds to areas such as Switgerland which could be the base
of operations, to assist refugees coming over the Border from
France into Spain, 411 the things that seemed to have some
possible effect of alleviating the conditions.

- Yes, you say that the po&icy of the government of US chagged

suddenly, overnight....

That's right. '

es+8nd 00K 2....8 complete turn.

That's correct. '

Yes, and I think that we have to enter now into the details.
Well, thee...the fact of the matter was....

I mean I would like that the...the necessary things to start
to talk about policy. What was till 1944, which was very late
already during the wa?.-.

Yes, very late.

essVery late in the war, What had been up till now thessoletts
say the policy of the govePnment of the US?

I think the policy - tp the extent that there was any policy -

was to ignore what was going on in Burope, to interfere with
the transmission of stories of what was going on to the Jewish
agencies in the US, to deny licenses to people who wanted to
transmit funds to rescue people, and generally not to take

any affirmative action.
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Yes, and what were the governmental agencies who were spe-—
cifically in charge of these questions, if there were any?
Well, the State Department had to'do with all these questio
really, they had to do with the granting of visas to people,
trying to faeed...flee occupied France, they participated fo
the U5 in intergovernmental conferences, such as the Bermuda
Conference, where these matters were talked about but nothin
ever happendd. And...,so it was reslly a...the problem of the
State Department.

This was the State Department. ut...I think that there was
at the time a bigs.ea lot of pressure in order to change the
policy..Q

There was pressure in Congress: 6Bongressman Cellar for examp.
was very active in trying to get the State Department to act
There were people in the State Department, such as Sumner
Welles, who showed mome inclinstion to take advantage of
opportunities of rescue, but other people seemdd to

on those activities,

Yes, if we enter into the dectails , let's take the visa pdlie;
Yes, N

sseWhat can you say about it?

Well, all I can say is that the...the consuls that we had in
France made life very difficult’for anybody who wanted to
come to the US.

In France only?

No, but,.s.France was one place where this question came up
very. regularily. They took the position that these people
might become dependents of the government tfthey came, despite
the fact that there were Jewish agencies willing to guarantex

_that this would not happen, and who ®ad the funds to back

Qs

up the guarantee. There was a strict limitation on sticking
within the quotas and very often the quotas weren't filldd.,.
Were NOT fillad?

Were not filled. And so there was no real attempt made to
facilitate entry of refugees,én the fonkibmyy very few reachet
our shores. king

Yes, and I think that there are very strickingagigggegsafout
the..sabout this question of the visa becausea
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know if one takes the immigration quotas since 1933...from
1933 tills.eletts say 1944, the amount of refugees that the
US could and should have received goes up till one million
and g half peoplecese

Yes.

Yes, and I think that the exact figures are about 500,000,
Very close to that, yes.

You agree with that.

That is correct.

Yes, and among these 500,000 I think that the Jews were eve
a minority.

thatccould be true too.

Yes, and how do you explain this?

I dont*t know that I can.

Try, please.

Well, this...the people who were handling visa matters and
the policy of the Department - State Department - seemed %o
be such that instead of facilitating the entry of refugees,
o?g%ructions were thrown in their way. It's as simple as th:

¥Yes, I think that we have the...we have some statements whi
‘x/exist in, one of the drafts of this repért which was forward:

to/the!President, eand which leaded to the creation of the
WRB, I think there ares..,.I would like you t0...t0 read
this;for instance, about thes.s.about the visa. Maybe you
read this and you choose what yoUessesBecause there was a
committee, a special committe that was appointed to,..t0
deliver the visa. No, no, this is underlined.
This is what...this is what Congressman Dickstein stated in
in the House of Representatives in 1943, He stated: "There
was no effort of any kind made to save from death many of
the réfugees whe could have been saved during the time that
tranéportation lines were available, and there was no
obstacle to théir admission to the US. But the destéuctive
‘policy of our organs of goveynment, particularily the State
Department, whe saw fit to hedge itself about with rules
and regulatidhs, instead of lifting rules and regulations,
brought about‘a<cdnaition 80 that...thaﬁleven existihg im-
migration quotas were filled.f

Yes, and there is something else about the committee
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Az In 1943, as the facts of what was happening in Germany ar

Poland particularily became more known to the public, the
was a good deal of attention ghven to this in Congress.>
For example, Congressmen Diekisein stated in the House
on December 15, in talking about the visas., He gaid: »
"Phere was no effort of any kind made to save from death
many of the refugees who could have been saved during #he
time that transportation lines were available, and there
was no obstacle to their admission to the US, But", sags
Congressman Diekstein,*the obstructive policy of our
organs of government, particularily the State Department,
which saw fit to hedge itself about with rules and reg-
ulations, instead of lifting rules and regulations,
brought about a condition so that not even the existing
Quotas were filled," Then Congressman Celler on the floor

0f the House said, "According t¢o Barl G. Harrison, who

 was Commissioner of the Immigration and Naturalization

Service, not since 1862 have there been fewer aliens
entering the country"., He sgid, "the interdepartmental
reyiew committee, which reviews the applications for
visa, are composed of one official from each of the fol-

~Vlowing departments: War, Navy, FBI, State and Immigration

That committee has been Qﬁ@hkm% in its slowness and
cold-bloodedness, It takes months and momths to grant
the visas, and then it usually applies to a corpse.f

It is a very strong statement.

Yes.

And what were the reasons which wo:re brought up by these
pgéple of the State Department in order...the main reason

“esein order not to grant the visa?

Well, as far as I kmow, one of the areas &0 which obst-
ructions were raised was that these refugees might bef
COMme BesssessPpublic..,.dependent on the pbblic for

support, when they came in, i,V JEREHHCoHiRntRTtion

that various organigations
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were willing to guarantee that these people would nat become
B.ees.dependent on the US fro support,

They were ready to take care of them?

Lhey were ready to make guarantees to this efiect and to tak:
care of the refugees.,

And didn't they...t00 talk about security reasons, saying
that these people would be a security risk?

YeSees

eeeat a time of war? _

That was one of the reasons and I have no doubt that the

FBI prohebly felt that the Nazis would use refugees...recruiid
agents among refugees coming to the US,

Yes, but I think it was Josiah Dubois,who was one of gour
assistants, who wrote in this report that it would have
anyhow been possible to...even to put these people in camps
for several weeks or months and t0 clear them afterwards,
Yes, they could have been secreened.

Yes, they could have been screened. This means the arguenent
issssels rather weak, no?

Well, I.441 think that while some people might have had
real fears in this regard, I don't think that that was
something that couldn't have begn dealt with.

Yes. No, but the fact that...the mere fact is that...do you
agree with thisg that theégﬂ$ib were in charge of the problen
in place of using % let's say the goveymmental machinery to
help'ﬁggnfolﬁe the question of the refugees, used this ma-
chinery to block everything%

Well, I don't want to interprete people's motives, but the
answer is that there were fewc: people coming in at a time
when there was the greatest need for people f£fé& find asylum
in the US.

Yes, because what is so striking and even shocking is that
when one studies this.s.this period, it is the complete
discrepancy between the...the emergency aftions which were
needed bhecause each day counted and each day there were

thousands of people who were murdered in the death camps,
and the very slow and bureaucratic and red-tape
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By December 1943 the pressure for some action on the . part
of the government grew much more intense, In the Senste

a resolution had been introduced,signed by twelve differer
senators and asking that plans be formulated to save the
Jews of Europe from extinction. The resolution endeds"We
have talked, we have sympathized, we expressed our horror,
the time to act is now long past due."

Yes, there is a striking fact too, that in all the reports
and the stets,..statements from the State Depsrtment that
we have read and that we have at our disposal, when they
handle with the problem of the refugecs, and in such a
case it was as a matter of fact speckfically the Jews,
they never dared to use specifically the word "Jewish" ,
they always refused this, And there ure even guotatkons
of Breckinridge Long, who was the head of the European
Division of the State Department, who said that in handlin
this problem of the refugees, one must not deal with
people of a particular race or faith. And this is a Very..
this is very striking. They wanted in one way to drewn
thepdewish question in a much more fFeneral problem, and
the Jews actually were the only one who were in danger

of imminent death.

I don't know if the¥ were the only ones, I think there
were some Poles that were non-Jdewish t00,..3ut the answer
is that the basic problem had toddo with the Jews and
everybody knew it.

Yes. Bverybody knew it.

Of dourse.

Yes. And..1iWell, let's now try to find how the Treasurey,
which was dealing mainly with financizl problems ~ with
money problems % how the Treasury became involved in this
story and when did it start, and in which circumstances.
Well, the story goes back to March of 1943, This was befom
the Ireasury had any knowledge of what was going on as
far as the ..S%*ate D partment was concerned. In March of
'43, the World Jewish Coggress representative in London
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sent word that the...thet there was a possibility of
rescuing Jews in Rumania, and they got...This was
brought to the attention of Sumner Wells., (Sumner Well
was the Undersecretary of the State Department).

Did they say how many Jdews?could be rescued?

They said ansubsntial number at this point. And Sumne
Welles sent cables %o our legation in Switzerland, whi
was a key place because ail the information as to what
was going on filtered into 8Switzerland, and asked for
more speckfic information., And then in Apbil, a couple
of months having gone by, the State Department receive
a cable from Bern, Switzerland, indicating how financi
arrangements could be made to help rescue Rumanian
Jews. And then the State Department then went back in
May of 1943, and asked for clarification of the finan-
cial arrangements. Now, despite the fact thet the
Treasury was in charge of the financial controlS..ss
No money could be given without the permission of the
Treasury?

No, it had 10 bes..The Foreign ifunds Control had %o
issue a license.,

This means - you?

That meant me, that meant, our staff. And...but this
was not brought to the Treasury'érattention at that
point at all, We didn't know that anybody was trying
to send the funds, or that it was being held up. And
finally, the State Depariment got in tough with the
Treasury and we had a conference with ths State Deg~-
artment on this matter. '

When was 1it%? -
This was in July of 2943. L
This means from March 0 Julyees.s. '
That's right. .

esethere is already a lot of timé_which passeds
The day after the conference we advided the State
Department that wess..

Could you talk about the conference. Did you particim
pate yourself ing.. ™

Yes, yes.

Qitesethis conference, You remember how the congerence
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went on?

Well, not precisely. I just remember we discussed the
eeseowWhat was wanted, what was needed t0,..what kin&
should be issued., We daid we'd consider whether the
safe~guards were such that this would not result in
foreign exchahge going to the Germans,

This was the concern?

I¥ was a concern. And the Treasury gp to that point
had taken a rather absolute phsition, that there should
be no' communications direct or indirect with enemy
territory. %0 we had been very rigid on this ground
ourselves, But the day after the conference in the
State Department, on July 16, we had resolved our
problems and we told the State Department we are pre—
pared to issue the likcense.

Yesy but I think this must have been a real shocky~your
“apgreement for the people of the State Department, be-

&ause as far as the records are true, during this
éonference of July 15, in which you participated, there
were people of the State Department, like Robert Borden
Reams for instance, who threw real cold water on theess.
on the proposal, saying that one shouldn't make an
agreement with the Germans before letting any Jew
escape fpom Rumania, which was completely whong.

Well, at any event, the Treasury Department decided

to go ahead. That was on...July 16.

This means yo u acted very quickly?

Yes, the next day. But the license wasn't issued. We're
not going through all the delays that took place after
that$ The State Departmens had cabled to our Embassye.]
our legation in Bern, saying the Treasury wants to
issue that license, and giving the legation the idea
the State Department didn't think so much of this. Axd
the legation came back and said we ought to consult
with the British, and they donsulted with the British,
and the British raised objections to this, so there
was justtone month after the other of delaye.

Why was}the legation of the US in Bern who had to dei%
with the British?
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Well, because the US and the British had certain joing
controls on communications with eneny property and enemy
territory, and that procedure had been established earlier
But it was used here and the effect of it was to delay the
issuance of the license much further.

This means,: agter the Treasury gave his agreement, the
State Depaditment succeeded to delay for how many months?
That/ was the effect of #, = till Deccmber.

from July till December?

That's right., And then it was only issued after Mr,
Morgenthamy had taken the matter up with seceetayy Hull and
made an appointment tossee Sece@tayy Hull. 4nd then finallj
the State Depariment very hurriedly issued the license witl

~out even consulting us as to what the license would 82y o

Suddenly they were in a hurry?

They were in a hurry at the very end, yes,

Why?

Well, because they recognised that....there had been all

this delay, and we had also uncovered s matter involving a
cable that had been sent earlier to the Bern €M, s« legatiion,

Well, that means that the propossl for the rescue of the
Jews in Rumania was made in ilarch, and that from March +ill
December, in spite of the fact that the Treasury gavd their
agreement as soon as they got some knowlegge of the facts,
this means that there was a delay of 9 months.,

Really the Breasury issued +t0...indkcated in July that we
would do it and it was in December that the license was
issued.

Yes. And can you tlak asbout the

W& PEHLE 47
plans de coupe sur Claude
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Finally in January 1944, the Tregsury got in the aet - I
say finally, because we recognised it was very late, late

in the war and late in time %o do anything about the exte
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extermination of the Jews. The Treasury had encountere
evidence that was so shocking,that they felt it had

to be brought to the attention of the President, and
this was done in January '44, And these are the facts
which the Treasury brought mp in Secretary Morgenthau!
memorandum &0 President Roesevelt: basically the facts
were that there was a real possibility in 1943 of
rescukng a considerable number of Jews in Rumania.
This had been uncovered by the World Jewish Congress
and its representative in London sent a cable on March
13, 1943 to their oppositesin the US and said that
this poseibility existed. The World Jewish Congress
then got in touch with Sumner Welles who was Under-
secretary of State, and he cabled our legation in
Switzérland and requested them to get in touch with
the World Jewish Congress and get the facts, which he,
.sWhich they did. On April 20, the State Department
received a cable from Bern, relatiéng to the proposed
financial arrangements wit connection with the prapose
fhntnonz}of Jews from Rumania and France.

In France, excuse me, these were mostly children who..
Yes ,

eeecOuld be saved.

On April...following thet 4pril 20 cable, on iay 25,
State Denartment asked for further information about
the financial arrangements. This hadn't been brought
at all to the attention of the Treasury at that time,
despite the fact that Treasury was responsible for
licensing any transactions with Europe.

Do you remember if the transacgion iﬂ%ﬁ%&géé a lot
of money% 5\

Oh, it would., Well, I don't remember, but I would
assume a hundred thousand or so to start with. Then
finally the State Department raised it with the
Treasury on June 25, 1943, and we had a conference
with the State Department on July 15, 1943. At that
fgnforehed shoultihe Dgpartiminy wis fuids Beadinye
tonfuence vi oo Aptint wa, qruty hedative

i wonced ot T fomi b7t Gy of fomds fallins
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in the hands of the Germans, giving them foreign ex—
change, It felt that the arrangements for getting
Rumanisn Jews out had to be cleared with the Germans
pefore any license was issued, and so forth, The Tmea=
sury was sort of put on the spot in this matter, because
_our genenrak view had been: we didn't allow any trans-
actions with enemy territory, however we went back and
explored this very thowoughly in the Treasury and
dedlded shat we had.,.we could put safe-gpards in the
f procedures so that no foreign exchange would come to the
Germans, S0 the next day we advised the State Deparitment
that we were prepared to issue the licenses..
Gs The next daye |
A% +es0n July 16. Then from July 16 until December, some
five monthes, nothing...no license was issued, And no
Ilicense was issued becausd the State Department never
was ready to say: go ahead, They sent a gable to the
lwgation thatsaid 'the Treasury Dep~rtment thinks they':
prepared to iissue a licensa'. The legastion in HDern then
took it wp with the FEpitish and the British, and one
delay after another ensued. And only after Secretary
Morgenthay had written to Secretary Hull and asked #ath
a conference with Séecretary of State Hull did the TREea:
the State Department issue’hufriedly the license that
was necessary, and of course then, it was too late.
Q2 It was too late®
A: Well, it was pretty much too late. The opportunity, the
situation had changed in Europe by thet time, and was
‘much more difficult to get people oub. And the Rumgni ans
were less free to do whqt they waanted to do.
¢t Yes, it was too late for the Jews of Rumenia whatsoever.
A: One reason the State Department might have hurriedly
issued the license when Mr, Morgenthaw was going over
to see Mr., Hull, was that we had uncovered some rather
shocking information to this effect: our legation in
Bern had been sending information to the Us for various
Jewish orgenizations. Some of this information had to &
with what was happening in Germany and theextermination
of the JewSe..
Qs And in Poland?
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Q: 4nd in Poland.

A% And in Poland, yes, And finally a cable was sent to the
legation sayingstplease 4o not send any wmore information
of this nature to the UD, except in exceptional circum=-
stances. We were able through friends in the 3tate Depar-
tment to bring out that this cable had been sent. And we
asked for a copy of the cable. Ve knew the number of it
and the date of it, and we asked for a copy of it. And
when we gos the cable, it didn't contain this instruction
out it just contained other material that was in the cable
So it was deliberately withheld from us and Mr, Morgenthax
was prepared to take this up with Secretary Hull, which he
did.

Wi Yes, I think we should enter intoc the details of the cable
Because 1if we don't enter into the detuils it will bve
diffieuldt to0sset0 understand. Tu coup la.

BOBINE #23
WA PEHLE 48

At Ons reason the State Department was on the defensive in
the matter of licensing the transaction involving the
Runmanian Jews, and in the end hurriecdly issued the limense
was because of a cable that later became rather famous.

I am reading now from a memorandum which was sent by the
general couneillor of the Ireasury,Randolph Paul, to the
Senretary of the Treaswury, which oullines the circumstance
under which this cable was sent. "On October 5, 1942,
Sumner Welles, as Acting Secretary of State, sent a cable
to Minister Harrison (our Minister in Befn), saying that
reports had been received by the #orld Jewish Congress
of thousands of Jews in kastern Europe being slaughéered,
and asked that the.,.gﬁﬁi%ig%gﬁer contact the Jewish

Was craslotble -
organizations and see what information could be received.a
Bhe State Department rdceived several cables in réply o
this. The most significant was a cable on January 21,1943,
number 482, It relayed a massage which was stated to be
for the informastion of Undersecretary of Staite, lMr. Welles
and 10 be transmitted $o0 Rabbi Stephen Wise, if the Under-
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secretary should so determine., This message described
a horrible situation concerning the plight of Jews in
Europe, It reported mass—executions of Jews in Poland,
according to one source six thousand Jews were being
killed daily. The Jews were required before exscution
t0 strip themselves of all their clothing, which was
sent to Germany. The remaining Jews in Poland were
confined to ghettoes. In Germany deportations were
continuing, meny Jews were in Hiding. There had been
meny cases of suicide. Jews were being deprived of
rationed food stuffs. No Jews would be left in Prag
or Berlin by the end of March. And in Rumania 130,000
Jews were deported to TPansnistria, about 60,000 had
already diedg and the rema#ning 70,000 were starving.
Sumer Welles then on his own initiative furnished thi:
information to Rabbi Wise and it was then circulated
auong the various Jewish organizations and became
public. That was done on February 9, 1943. (the infor-
mation was furnished to Rabbi Wise). On February 10,
the next day, a significant cable was sent back to the
legation in Switzerland, It readee..

@s By who?

At By..,it was sent by tue State Department., It was signec
with Welkes' name, but this && the way the State Dep=~
artment does things. The cable read: "Your 482, January
21. (meening it was referring to the report of the
extermination which just referred to)- and the cable
went on) in the future we would suggest you do not
accept reforts submittew to you to be transmitted to
private persons in the US unless such action is advige
able because of extraordinary circumstances. Such
private messages circumvent neutral countries! censor-
ship and that by sending them we risk the possi-
biligy that steps wculd necessarily taken by the
neutral countries to curtail or forbid our means of
communicaiion for confidential official matters.” Now
read in the light of the reference to your 482, January
2l, this cable makes it clear that the people in the
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State Department weresgying ‘don't send any more
messages over gbout what is happening to the Jews, It
was quite clear., We were 24vised DYeee

It's very strange, because the cable was gent at the
request of the A,ting Secretary of S5....

That's righte.

As.eas 2o matter of fact,.

Butessl didn't quite understand.

I mean the.eesothe cabld which forwarded the information
was sent at the requestes.

That's righte.

ves0f Sumner Welles.

That's right. Bustlevertheless, it was used as a vihicle
for saying Yon't send any nmore information over that
goes to private agencies', though the cuble had said *ser
it to Rabbi Wise if you think it is advisable's At any
event, we did discover that the cable had been sent and
we agked for a copy of it.

Excuse me, a further pointi....

Yes.

sseWhy didn't they want that the Jewish organizations
get thesseget the information?

Well, your look....youtre dsking for people's motives.

I suppose that this information necessarily would cause

greater pressure to be brought on the State Department
to0 do something and cause hysteria. They felt it was

- inadvigable in any event,

This was a pressure for actiona

Yes, of course. And immediately emergency mectings were
held imdNew-York, and people were getting in touch with
thier congressmen and asking fOTeece

The famous rally of Madison Squre GardensSyes

That's right.

WoSasse

eeed direct result of this information peing available.
We then asked for a copy of this cable, and we were
advised that it was a departmental communication, it was
strictly a politicel communicgtion which had nothing to
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do with economical affairs, had only a limited diestri-

bttion within the department, =nd it...a copy could not

be furnished.

But excuse me, why did you msk for the copy of this

cable?

Because we wanted to varify that the Stgte Department

was shutting off information as to what wad happengéng

in Burope.

You had some hint of this?

Oh, yes. We had a copy of cable, but we wantdd....we were

t0ld whak the cable said, but we wanted = copy of it.

Finally, the Secretary in a meeting with 3 cretary Hull

asked Breckingridge Long for this c¢able...or asked Hull

for it in the presence of Breckingridge LOng.css

Breckinridge Long‘was....what was exaetly the function

of Breckinridge.eees

He was in charge of wuropean Affairs in the Department

of State. Shortly thereafter, Breckinredge Long sent to
the Secretary a paraphrase I this cable. HOWever, the
cable as paraphrased didnt refer st all to the previous

cable which made it clear; that whhé they were dégling

with was information as to atr.cities in Burope, ang.
therefore we were misléad by this reference not being
included, but we got this information from friends in

the State Department, so we imew that they had intention-
ally mislead us. ‘

Yes, this means that there were...ﬁhere are two different
things: one is concealment of information...  ;¥

Repression of... h

Exactly. Repressioh of infifrmation is a better wordees.

And the other is misleading us and failing to.i..50 give

us a copy of the cable that was aceurate, and without

that reference in there it could have been a completely

inoguous cable., But I think that it was this circumstance

-~ that they had done this -~ that enabled the Secretayy

t0 go to the President and say: they're conceading

what's happening,whatthey are misleading us, and some-

thing drastic has to be done. : )

Yes, this is the real origin of the....gf the ngation
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of the wRB.

¥es it is, yes, it is.

Well, alors, can we enter now into the...into the details.
I mean, Morgentham who was secretary of the Treasury re-
ported directly to Ro@se...to President Roosevelt.

That's correct. He wrote him a very strong memorandum and
we had a meeting with Roosevelt and reviewed the mattsr,
You participated yourself....

Yes,.

essin this meéting?

Yes. The Sewretary Morgenthau, and Mr, Debois and myself.
DO yoU.s.do you remember how the meeting went on?

Well, I can just remember that the Secretary...the Preside
was very interested in this snd could see that this was a1
importent thing that had to be looked at, taken care of,
and I would assume that he recogniged théspolitical im-

. _ O - )
plications too, =a& the Stste Department wss found taking

thqif actions which the Ame#ican pyblic would not agree
Yes, and could you read ths begimning of the_report 0feee
of this report? o

(mumblitig on the tape es pages are being turned.) \\_
A: Yes, Norgenthauw's memorandum 4o the President saids «One

of the greatest crimes in History, the slaughter of the
Jewses.Jewish people in Burope is continuing umevaded.
This government has fof a long time maintained that thas
policy is to work out programes to save those Jews and
other persecuted minoritjes of Burope who could'be\saved.
You are probably not as familiar as I with the utter
failure of ceriain officials in our State Department

who 'are charged with actually cervying out this pollcy -
to take any effective action to prevent the extermination
of the Jews ih German controled Europe. The State Departme
officigls have failed to take any positive steps reason—
ably calculated to save any of these people.

fhey have used devises such as setting up.intergovernmenta
organizations to survey the whole refugeeVproblem and
calling conferences, such as the Bermuda.confbrence, to
explore the whole refugee problem, making appear that

._\



Péhle Bob. 324~5 - 18

positive action could be expected. In fact, nothlng has
beem accompllshed.”
¢t Yes, but what is a little bat has....change.

BOBINE 325
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ws Do you think thatwwithout your...personal actions, the
action of Horgenthau, the action of the Treasury Depert
mant, 6o you think that the WRB would have Been in any
cas¢ establikhed?
At Well, this is hard to tell,nbwut if any such action hadn't
" begen taken, it would obviously have taken even later than
- the WRB.seestablishment took place. And it was already
¥ery late in the war. Otherwise I can't read as t0.s.it's
clear that the Trdasury was the impbtus by which the
Bgard was established, Whether some other action went
along to have the same effect at some later date, I have
no way of knowing.

ﬁQz Yes, And could you try tv explain what happened psycho-

logically with a man Morgenthaj. Because he was obviously
an assimilated %ew, and how did he become so much involved
in the plight of the Europeah Jewry%

A: Well, he had on his staff a...a nunber 6f gentile lawyers
LB 2 v

Q: As you?

At I was one. And they got interested in this matter and
brought it to his attention very forcibly. And his con-

science was such that he recognized he had to act.

Qt It is the only thing you can say?

At It seem® to me that says it.

Q¢ ‘es. Bute.s..because what is remarkable in the report he
sent t0...t0 the President is that he talks specifically
and very strongly about the Jewish problems, and he is
not afraid t0eaas

A: no, he faced up to the issue very...in a very strong and
seesforceful way, and he used his own relationship with
the President, which was a very close one, to get the
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Board establishede.

Yes, and he aéted as a Jaw.

He acted as a member of the cabinet of the USeeo

Yes. :

eselessdon't waht to interprete as...what he did in any
way other then the facts that we talked about.,

Yes. VWhat were thees.actually the powers of the TWRB?
Well, the Board...the executive order establisheig the
Board was written in the Ireasury Department, and the
importance of it wss,ths T said, it changed the poliey o:
the US... B
overnight. : / 
...It stated the policy of the US in rather farceful way
In first place, it reckted that he was 1ssu1ng 'this orde
as President of the US snd commander in chief of the arm
and Yavy, He established the Boaﬁd in his own Executive
Office. And... '

: This means tnside the TYeasury.,.the bumldlng of the

Treasury.

It wes in...well, we were vhisically located in ﬁhe
building of the Treasury, bub the office officialy was
part of the Executige office of the President, not part
the Treasury Department. He ngt on the Hoard the top cab
cabinet peoPIe who concern the Secretary of" SHate, the
Secretary of War, and the Secretay of the Treasury. And
then he charged the Board with carrying out this policy.
And the policy, he said, “it is the nolicy of this Gover
ment to take all measures within its powers to rescue th
vicgtims of enemy oppression who are in iminent danger of
death, and otherwise to offer these victims all possible
relief and assitance, consistent with tﬁe successful
prosecution of the war." And then he went on t0...in the
execubtive order, to direct the State, Treasury and War
departments to be of assistance to the Board, he arrangei
for funds to be avgilable,to i%, he directed them +o
cooperate with the private organigatidns and to facilita:
their operationSeeses
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Why the Board was called the War, War Refugee Board,
when it is known that lMorgenthau in his report to
Roosevelt deals wmpecifically with the Jews? And when
he talks himself aboub.a.. _

Well, we weren't excluding non~Jewish refugees from
BBlpe..

I understand... .
eeeoAnd we made that clear in the Board:s operation,
There were Catholic orgenization who were obviously
not directing their activity primarily to Jewish relied
There were other religiéis organizations who cooperatec
with the Board. Po it had a broader...

scope. ’

essSCODEL

xes, but it was done...lt was created spe01fically for
the Jews, could we say this?

I,ec0l dldnﬂt understund.

No, I Sayf but can we say that the Board mn splte of
this was created spe01flcally Teona

I think it was recognlded tnat this was the maaor
problem we were Qeallng.wltn. I

yese ‘ n
yes. . v ‘

And what were your...because it seemsw that you had
aes.a formal powef, very strong, as a matter of factiew
Yes, . ‘

sesBut what were the wmyn of implementing...'

1

That was.e. . : . N

your action, :

That was left to the WRB and really t@nthe staff of the
WRB to do their best with. :

Yes, and what were the £irst Steps youde.

Well, one of the first things we recognized we had ‘o
was to get representatives of the Board abroad. And

we sent people to Turkey, to Spain, to London, 0
Sweden, t0..eswork in the field, to facilitate the
private organizati¢ns who were already in the field.
But this people were mostly members of the Treasury?
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Yes, mostly, hot entirely,

But mos+tly.

‘Wéll, some of them were: The representative in London
was, our representative in Spain was, Sweden. Not Ira

H Irshman who went to Trukey, not Roswell HMeClelland, wh

A3
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went to.S8witgerland.

He was élready. I have seen in the order which eesta=-
blished the Board it is said that the Board will have
to report'wery often and very regularly to the Presider
Was this aditually done?

Well, we didn't make reports to the Fresident and mgery
often we went to the President when there was some
aetion we wanted him to take or to approve. One of the
things that the executive order established was that th
Board's revresentatives abraéad would have diplomatic
status. Thid was something the State Department didn't
Like to give, and didn't Like to give to non-State -
Department peovle, but it helped our operations a great
deal. |

les, and about the...the first step you took, because
as a-matter of fact, asvyou said, it was already very
late in- the war, already almost five millions Jews Had
been killed, and it was fewy difficult, as a matter of
fact, to do something vractically in order to rescue
the Yews who were still in +the hands of the Germans.
How did you face this...this problem?

~ Well, one of the things we thought was very important

was that the Germens know of this new policy of the US,
Yes. | v e
And we felt it was important that the significant
countries fighting Germany, made it clear that

Germans who éan...who involved themselves in nmurdering
Jews would be punished after the war. And this,we felt,
would be much'more effective now because the war was
reaching a stage where Germans could see they were
golng to loose, and therefore they had to face the
problem of what was going to happen after the war. And
when theyees .

But the.s.ethe Stel.seSatellites...

Yes, the Sattelites too.
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At So we thought it was very important to ge? an un-
equivocal declaration of warning beamed to\all the
enemy territary. \

W} This was the first stepa.s.

At one of the early steps that we took, yes.

Q: *es, end was this declaration made?

As‘There was a declaration.We had an arguement with the
British aboug this, The British took the position the
such a declaration would not be effective pointing ot
that there had been declarstions in the past and that

they didn't séem to have slowed down theeesthe an=
nihilation of the dews, e gountered that by saying
~ we felt ythat a ﬂeclaration:at the time when Germany
. could see it might loose the war was an entirely
different matter.. . /

Q# Yes, the first declaration oﬁaa made in December 194% .

A3 Yes, then the British 1mp051ng thls, reported to our

' ambassgdor in the United Klngdom,FAmbassador Winant,
and he reported back that the ™.

Qs *ardon, :

7

BoBINE 326
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Az Barly in the operations of the. WRB, they were con=>
fronted with the British attitude sbout the\whole
problem of rescuing Jews from Gegrmany and ocaupied
territory,., This came about because Undersecret
Stettinius; who had shown himself to me to be quite

- favorable %0 ' our operations, referred to the Board
for comment a messag: he had gotten from the British
commenting negatively on the ﬁroposal that a new
warning to the Germans be issued. We replied to Mr.
Stettinius and in our reply we stated: "The statement
by the British that the 1942 declaration seemed to
indicate to the Germans means whereby they could
distress and embarass the allikes is not fully under—
stood, So long that any government participating in
such a declaration is determined to do all in its
power to prevent the murder of the Jews, and this
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factsis made clear, it is not...we do not see how any
such statemmnet could embarass such governmenx. On the
other hand, (and I au reading from our memorandum to Mr
btettmnlus) if +the position of such government is that
expresced by certain British officials éi our Embassy
in London in December, see cable 8717 from Winant -
December 15, in simple terms that they were apparantly

willing to accept the probeble death of thousands of

Jews in enemy territory beccuse of "the difficulties

of £§§§”§%E§ aof any considersble number of Jews, shoul
thev be rescued", and if this attitude is knewn to the
Germans by virtue of the actions if not the words of
such governomnt, them the contention that a declaration
night embarass such governient has some significance."
Yes, @...5 very great significdnce as a matter of facts
Clearly this means that thcy...tbey would have been

\\ﬂembura sed if Hitler would have...if the Nazi would hav

released the Jews.

This says that certain Sritish officials had expressed
this view to Ambassador Nlnant.

But it is the...bthey didn't stup to, follow the same
line, as a matter of fact. Bécause I haVe here a gstate=
nent,ofin aide—memo, a mémorpndun that the British sent
to the US in Mzrch 43, beflore the Bermuda conference,
where they say almost the same things. And thls was
cluosy one year vefore. They say:"lhere is a posgipilits

that the Germans or their sattelites may change over
from the poliay of extermination to one of extrusion

(this means expelling) and aim as they did before the
war, at embarassing other countries by flooding them
with alien immigrants.” It is...it is exactly the same.
And...do you know that the Jews who were in the hands

of the Germans, the Jewish leaders in Poland, in Slovakis
and....when they could send a mescage, requested always

the same thing: they wanted a declaration specifying
that the bombings which could be maﬁe oPer the Germen

cities should be explained to the Germans as retaliatory
bombings, specifically for the murder of the Jews,

At Without attempting to explain the British-position,
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the one

particularily the one you have just quoted from the aide-~
memoire to plan the Lermuda conference, it is true, I
believe, that if Hitler had said: if they US will =accept
all the Germensdews, I'll send them over there, there
would have heen a great deal of emburassment.

Yes.

- Yes,

There would haye beeN....No doubt, But tiais is g very
difficult guestion.

It is. And the position c¢f the US in that sort of thing
has...has changed drastically since the WRB. days. We hav
admit6ed hundreds of thousanus of Cubans, we are admitti
hundreds of thousands of Vietnamese, we admitted & lot
of Hungurian freedom fighters after the Hungarian revolt
Mexicans are coming over owr border, many cven illegall;
but there is very little attempts being made,in a con-—-
certed way,to do anything sbout the immigration. So the
has been a change.,

Today you mean?

Yes.

Youw think that the policy tosay is much more liberal.
Oh, yes, there is no doubt. The Cuban thing,for example
There was very Little disturbance in the US ,that hundred
of thousands of Cubans are coming in, very little. They
. haves...they have done well in the US, and I think it's
"been z very satisfactory experience.

Yes, L understand what you mean. 1 am not sure that
this are... \
completely comparable? maybe not. maybe not.

Yese. And if...if I asiz you what were the achievements
of the Board. I mean, we will talk specifically tomorxc
but did the Board basically succeed in its tasks, what
would you answer?

The Boar&é..the Board succeeded in one task, and that
was to change the policy of the US government. And tha
was édone very quickly. Right after the Board was ege
tablished, under¥Secretary »tettinius,called mzéand
asked me to come to his office and asked me what the
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State Department could do to be helpful. And I said, t
State Department could be very helpful once they undex
stood what the new policy was. And SO0 he s2ide...asked
me 0 be in his office the next morning at 9:30, and

I came and he had 211 the Division heads, the operatin
heads there and he told them that the policy of the
State Department was to cooperate a hundred per cent
with the WRB and he went around the room and said *do
you understrond this, do you understand it, do you
understand it'ﬁThis wag a powerfnl thing. Nothing Jike
this had ever been done that [ ever heard of. But it
told the people ot the opersating letel that there had
been a change. Ahd there had been.

Yes, and they didn't try anymore to....

Oh, I wouldn't say that. We..,.we ddd have to laze in
difficulty but...they knew we could go to Mr. Stettini
and siZraithen them up, and they were minimized that
WEY o |

Yes, well, this repregents o big change whatsoever,
Yes. Now the accomplishments ofthe Board lie in all
sorts of different ways. One was to give the private
agencies o feeling they hnd cleiment for them in the
government, Somebody that would come and fight their
battles for them. 4nd the most important private agenc:
was colled the Joint, the Joint Distribution Committee,
and the nead of that was a man called Moses'Levitt.
Moses Levitt who coame to me immedistely and said 1
just cheonged his life couwpletely, because instead of
deffling with everybody in the stabte....in the Governmmer
hz now had somebody who would }zke his side. And we
were able to facilitate the operations of the Joint
Distribution Comnittee by tronsmitting funds, by
licensing, by sending messages into that they could
never get through, by supporting their activities
accross the border, That is one of the things that
chaged right away.

And what were the others?

Well, there was a matter of false pasgports. The Latin
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amePican counsuls, many of them, in Switzerland,had been

issuing passports the people had paid for. These were

people who had never been in Latin Americs, who dddn't

speak spanish, and these passports really were invalid.

The Germans rounded up & lot of refugees who had these

passports and put them in = special camp in France.

Vittel.

At Vittel, &nd started to enquire whether these passporte

were valid. And of dourse if they weren't, they would be

shipped oute We heard about this, and we got the State

Depsrtment to send a message to every embassy we had in

Latin americe, instructing them to strongly urge the

sovernment not to deny these passports' validity while

the war was going on. And we saved by thet by that methol

«..none of these countrics tuPned these passports down

while the war was going on, s@ these people were preserve

becouse of that,.

Yesi

But thot was the sort of thing possible to do.

This means the things which were possible to do it was a

VerYe.e.a very small scale.

Phot's right. It was o smoll scale and it was lage.

And you were conscious ol thig?

Oh yes. Oh yes, We were very conscious of this.

Did you have the....beczuse you were a special agené?

crezted fpr gpecie , tasks,with special powers, did you
iﬁ“é@i* 1ife of the Board the feeling ol ..«0f

emergency, that every.... '

Oh yes, Oh yes. The staff of the Board was very dedicated

have in 4

and very absorbhed in their Jjob

BOBINE 327
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One of the nost difficult things to understeznd is really
whet does it mean t0 bes..to be informed. When one lives
here, in Washington or in Néw-York, what is the meaning
of Treblinka, what is the meaning of the extermination,
whet is the meaning of Auschwitz, what does it mean to
knew - I mean, does it penetrate the consclousness of
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the people? and I have the feeling that in many casses it
didn't - at all, Even if they knew,

I had a funny experience preparing for thlS interview.
wbviously I know what happened, but Zevertheless it has been
a8 shock to me %o go over it again, to see people's attitudes
some of this materiael we're dealing with, is so shocking
that people put it out of their minds, or disbelieve it.
Disbelieve it7

I had a very peculiar experience in the wWBB, \When we first
got the two eye-witness aeponn%% of people thatwwere in
Auschwitz and had eéscape d and who were able...who were
able t0 say definetly what was happening, where it was
happening, #&n what way it was happening in a very convincing
way, and Board seized upon this because general statements
that Jews were being killed, people would reject or not
take seriously, they would...they would try to avoid be-
lieving it. But now we hag the eye-witness accounts. So

we put out a press release, or melease stat for a

week after it was out, before it would be printed. And

we sent it owt. And I had a call fpom Elmer Davis, Elher
Davis was a fine journalist, he mas head of the governments
Informztion Office ~ the Office of War Information - an
excellent person, and he asked he to. withdraw this press
release and to cell it back. And I said, there wasnono
possibility of doing that, and he said, well, I'd like you
to come dommn to see me and to talk to my staff, I went and
talked to them. And to a man they said it should be with=
drawn, not because it wasn't true, but that no one would
believe i%, and everyone would say: this is another Belgian
atrocity story of wWorld War I, some of which turned out not:
to be true. And thereffire other releases by the government
would...would be discounted tooc. Well, we didn't call it
back, i%'s needless to say, bmt the fact that he felt this

way, had a real lesson to me, That peorle reject bellevéng
in such awful things.

Yes, As a matter of fact, one of tness two witnesses is
a protagonist of this film.
Heally?
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Yes, we met him last week in New~York. All right, now

I ask youssomething else, sbout the State Department,
about the motivations @f people like Long, like Reams,
I can give their names, like Dubrow. Do you think tthey
were motivated by real and actual anti-Semitism?

I don't like to ascrive motives to peonle, but I.l.l
tnink that most non-Jdcws, and cone Jews, are snti¥Semiti
to some extent.,

Oh, they are.

And I have become conscicus of this mysell and It've
been conscious &f the fact that the faet that you're
dJewish doesn't mean you wre Ivee from prejwiice. I had
an interesting experience in this regerd at = golf-club.,
Golf clubs asre Roted for therr prejudices, and....of
one sort or another. And a long time age, three of my
friends and I decided Lo play golf togetlher every week-
end, and we soon found that the puoblic covrses were t00
crowded, and we wanted to join a country club. But two
of them were Jewish, and anone of the regulsr country
cliubs would accept Jewdsh members. So we joinéd a count
club that was primarily Jewish, and it worked out fine,
And we played there ewer sidce, although +the two Jewisk
nembexrs have since died, but the two genitile members ar
811l there. About six years ago, the question came up
of black people wanting to join the country club, and

the question was whether tais country club would admit

a black member. And it was a very difficult things. They
félt this was their club, why should they admit black
members and so forth, but finzlly they were convinced
that any group of people who had been treated as the
dJews have been trezted, couidn't in good conscience
discriminate against blscks, and s0 we have black membe
in there. They are the most corteous, they are the besi
golfers, and they are very welcome, and they arec...it
is a complete success, But it was overcome by people
recognizing that saying 'no' weuld be showing prejudicc
which had been shown agsinst them.

Yes, interesting story. tu reste gros sur lui, j'espere
rna i atadd
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Don't move. And you plsy golfl every week? It's possible
to film you playing golf?

Oh ne, no, it's.e..you could ahow me raking leaves, but
net playing golf.

W2 Why not? +this would be very good.

As No.

Qs inyhow, a Jewish club, Jewish golf.
Okcay?

WA PEHLE 52 MUET

plans de coupe sur Pehle et sur Claude.
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The deportations of the Jews from Hungary to Auschwitz
started roughly avound the 15th of May, 1944, Between
the 15th of May, 1944 and the beginning of July about
400,000 Hungarien Jews perished in. Auschwityg, were
gassed. And what is absolptely remarkable about this
is that Germany andflf and the whole world knew that
Germany had already lost the war and the world knew
exactly too, what was the meaning of these deportations
and everybody knew bthat Auschwitz was a killing centre,
and thet the deportations meant sure death for 95% of
the people who were shipped therc. One of the most ure
gent and dramstic requests, which was made at the time
by the Jewish organizetions and the Jewish leaders who
were ceught in the hands of the Nazi - I mean the
Jews from Hungaria, the Jews from Slovakiay,and this
recuest was déspatched in the Western world through
different underground channels, but it went rather
fast, was the regquest fvr the bombing of the railroads
leading to Auschwitz, of the bridges, and even the
bombing of the killing centre itself, of the murder
installations, I mean the crematorium, the whole.,.the
whole system oi killing. I think that the first request
was made after two Slovakiasn Jews succeeded 0 escape
from Auschwitg and delivered for the first time a full
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extensi®@ and complete report sbout Auschwitz. They
explained what Auschwitz wns, ~nd they even drew a map
of Auschwitz, a plen of Auvsciuwitz. Well, we will not
enter into the details of thce dispatching, but the WRB
Was informed for the first time in April about the pre=
paration whichves made by the railroad authorities,
Slovakian, Hungarian and German, about the shippment

of the Jews.e.ss0f the Hungerian Jews to Auschwitz, and
the war(?) knew...got 2 specific request in June by a
letter of Jacob Rosenheim who was the president of

the Jewish religious orthodox orgonization in New-York,
where they ask to the Board specifically to intervene
for the bombing of Auschwitz. fnd E think that the lette
was sent to the Secretory of War Baeeee

Stimson.

to Morgenthaym, who was the S¥cretary of the Treasury,
to Cordell Hull who was 8ecretary of State, and this

of course, because you werethe aching director of the
War Refugee Board came inte hends. Can yow explain what
what happened at the time,

When this was first raised with us in June 1944, the
staff of the Board was very sceptical about this. We
anticipated that militarilf this would be o very
difficult project. we felt thot railroad lines are very
readalilly repaired and thoat if you go in and bomb a
railraod line, the experience hod been:tWithin z few
days they can put it buack together again. Nevertheless
we did call this to the attention ¢f the War Depariment
but with some hesifancy because when the BRB was esta=-
blished, it was made clezr thet we were to take every
action thatcould be taken consistent with the Wwar
effort. And we had some resl doubts as to whether
bombers should be diverted from persuing the war for
this purpose.

Yes, there are severel points which I would lilke you to
make clear. You say that the railroads can ve easily

repaireq, °ois is true....

Thgt was our understanding.
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Yes, this is true, but precisely the Jews who reques—
ted the bombing of thae failroads, I think for instance
about the Rabbi of Nitra, about eissmandel, kmew this
wery well, and he asked for a - let's say - constant
Bombing of the railroads. And he nsked to for the
bombing not of the...for the bombing €86r the railroads
near the concentration points from where the Jews
were shipped, you know., This is one point. The second
thing...you say that this bombing could have divert
from sune general war effort, but it was very dramatie
situation... ,'_ﬂ

Yes, it was. And know there is =z greét'deal of intere:
in this field and in this guestion. Recently, some
time agc, when 1 went to MeGill University in Canadae
to talk on the anniversary of the Holocaust, many of
the questions that I got after ny statement had %o do
with the nombing. There is a lot of feeling. apparéﬁtl
that much that should have been done in th1$ area was
not done. I can only try to recoustruct our feelipg 8
at the time. And as non-military people we were
hesitont to press the war Department 0 send bombers
which would otherwise be used to bomb Germsn cities
to...for this purpose. We' were concerned about the
reaction of American peopie, if troups had been drafte
into the army to fight this war died in this sort of-
expedltlon. That was our feeling at the time. This
ﬁh&asmaaas thaézﬂm$ehnm&ztaﬁﬁaaﬁxhbgig}&adélmdadﬁng
Aesahsciwitz, let's say the whole quesmlon, this was
not considered gt the time as & nilitary target.

Ah,. .. eapparantly not, apparantly not considered a
military target. Later on, I understand, that Auschwit:
ws3 bombed, but not to...not at that point.

No, the death instsllations, the death camp ivself was

never bombed, what was bombed were the***
factories.,

seofuctories near, in suvgust and in Septenmber, twicey
and tese were Tvhe Buna plunt factories,sess
Lhe 1IG PFarben.
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b..belonging to the IG Farben and this means that any

" now Auschwitz was withingthe range of thes..0f the

bombers.

Wwell, as you know, after some time had passed and morg
people took the position that not only ggould the
rail-lines be bombed, but that the crematoria themselve
should be bombed. #e went into this matter further wit
and with much soul searching, because we were very
concerned that going in we would kill a number of dJews
who were there, and...and our mission is not to do thie
we felt that the Germzns could use this as o propagande
thing. But nevertheless, the time came where we felt
the situation was so desperate that we should ask the
war department to do it, and we did.

Yes, but I think it is interesting to follow the.eoe
to follow the documents znd to show how for instanee
you, in your case, your own opinion chenped. «o

I+t aid, it d4id.

.o .during the time. ind there is this other point, you
say that it waes a big concern - the idea 0 kill dews
but anyhow, they were doomed, the Jews who wers in
Auschwitz. .

Yes, that's true, that's true, and we knew that, but
nevertheless we were hesitant to do it. Now, there

was some division in the staff of the WRB on this,

and Dr. Akzin particularily urged that we go ahead.
But most of the people felt that this was an area
thatwwe shouldn't get irto.

Yes.

m™his was on the staff of the Board, this is not a
position that was taken by XTr. Stimson or Mr, Hull,

or Mr, Morgenthau, this was the staff of the Board
itself.

Yes, but after you received the first request fop the
bombing, this was in June, you went to meed thé Assis
Secretary of Har, John HeCloy, and you expressed
yourself your doubts about the bombing, and what

was his position?
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He said that they would cousider it, but when they came
back, they said it was not feasible.

Aand what was the reason...the reasons he gave?

The reasons he gave was that the light bombers that
they had available couldn't...wouldn't be effective
against such a targebt, and the heavy bombers that would
be sent from the United Xingdom couldn'$

BOBINE 329
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After receiving the first request Hor the...for the
bombing, this was in the second half of June, you went
to meets..pou went personally to meet Assistant Secretar
of ¥War John ilcCloy, =znd you expressed your own doubts,
but you left him to..,. to explore the matter, Arnd what
was not onlytthe answer of ¥cCloy, but in your opinion
what was the...the deep feeling of MeCloy about the
whole affair?

WeCloy was S“cretary Stimson's immediate assistent, and
his tine and~energy and attention was on the war. And
although he acted as Stinmson's representative on the
WRB, his main concern obviowsly was the war and =211

its problems. And therefore it was very difficult %o

get him to focus on anythiag else.

Yes, and...because the position of McCloy never chenged.

K ]

Ho.

ceeshe was alwagye against this,

He was against it, he felt it wasn't feesible. He thought
it would be using military personnel for...for something
other than persuing the war.

Xes, and your own posibion -~ did your own pasition from
month to month, did your position chan@e?

Yes, it did. Our first impression was that we showldn't
even requestithe War Department to look into this. We
should disadvise them. Later we took the position: 'yes,
we'd like the war department to sec whether this could
be done' At the same time we saild that we weren't
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orepared to recommend it, we were just exploring it

in effectiocss

what is $triking when one reads the documents of the
WRB, is thet yourself, your personsl position, that yo
were very hesitanyg.

very whst?

Hesitant. Thot you hesitatéed, yOUeees

‘es, we were. We were. Maybe from now lokking back, we
whouldnt't h=ve been, but we were. we were quite hesite
until in November we came to the posibtion that we had t
recommnen®® this, and that 1t should be done. sAnd notcm@'
should the rail-lines be bonbed, but the crematoria
shouid be bombed too...

And vinntea.

s sand we wrote a strong letters.i.

Yee, I would like to lknow, why did your position'eham
Bhe emergency, the...nmgybe we felt more confident in
our ovn ability %o take this position, maybe it was
partly becsuse of the nressure that had been broﬁght
upo 13, I can't reconstruct that.

Yes, but thers is a trogic irony in one way, when you
cay emergoency, hecause in {ovember, whellees

O0f course,

eoyou recoumended the bombings,as a matter of fact
the...the gassing didn't take place eny more in Ausch-
witz, it was almost finished. -
faybe.

There is this gap in thess.

Yes. In any event...

Yes, but I mekldyou precisely, what was the origin of
the changing of youre..

1 have given you the best explanation I can of this.
Yes,

veecnld Taeoit's not possible to go back this many years
znd to seys this is how I felt and this is why I chahge
oy mind.

No, but my guestion is not a polemic question, it's
because I have read...l have read your...your letter of
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November 8, to McCloy, =nd it is a very impressiv\
and strong letter...

Yes, but you ask why didn't...in effect, why wasn'1
that position teken earlier, and I have tried to
explain to yow, as best I can, the develtpment of
ouwr thinking., Now it may very well be that it's
tragice thatwwe didn't take this position é&m the
first »nlace, but that is a fact.

Yes, could you read the excerpts of this...of this
letter?

wWell, on November 8, 13944, I wrote to Hr. McCloy,
Assistant Secgretzry of wWer: "1 send you herewith
copies of two eye-witness descriptions of the no-
torious German concentrestion and extermination cam
of Auschwitz and Birkenasu in Upper Silesea, which 1
have Just received from the Bomrd's special rep-——-
resentative in Bern, Switzerland, Roswell McClella
This is - 1 cut'you now beczuse it's tPagic the
whole story, = because these two peonple, these two
“lovakian Jews escsped from Auschwitz the Tth of
April...

: Yes,.

...they reasched Slovokia on the 21 of April, they
immediately delivercd the famous report and the
mnay. and what is tragic that the full report,which
struck you very much obviously, reasched you cnly
in Novenber.

Yes,

Up till now, you had only very drv excerpgs.

well, I would put it in = dé&fferent way, I would
say that once we had comnme to this conclusion, we
used whatever material was sveilable t0...t0 argue
with the War Departmeant.

which conclusior? the bowbing you mean?

Yes, yes. Ande..it wasn't just the fact that weeee
that these reports comellsate, it was the fact that
OUr. . sOUr conclusion came only at this time that w{
should do it.

Ah yes, this is your conclusion?
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That's right.
esowhich came late.
I says;"No report of Nere...Nazi ctrocities received
at the Board has guite caught the gruesome brutzlity
of what is taking place in these camps of horror, as
have tlese sober, factual accounts of conditions in
dugehwitz and Birkenau. I earnestly hope that you will
read these reports." then we go on to saystNikhie déstruc-
tion of large numbers of people apparantly is not a
simple process., The Germsns have veen forced to dewte
considersble techrologicel ingenuity and administrative
know-how in order tc carry out murder on a mass pro-
duction basis, as the attached reports will tedtify.
If the elaborate murder installations of Birkenagy were
destroyed, it seems clear that the Germans could not
reastruct them...reconstruct them for some time. Untidl
now, despite pressure from many sources, I have been
nesitant to urge the destruction of these camys by
direct military action. But I am convinced that the
point hes now been reached where such mction is just=-
ifiable, if it is deemed feasible by competent militmry
authorities.”" And then I go on %o suggest that k4 has
military implicstions too.
This means that whet struck you when you got the full
report was the...let's say the mass production of the
killing.
Yes, oh, yes.
It was like a fTactorye...
That's right.
see that if the crematorium would be destroyed, it wald
be very difficult for the Germrns to kill. As a matter
of fact, what is interesting is that the...l have seen
the escapee of Auschwitz, Vrbs, and he witdl be in this
film; and he says...bhe says thot according to him, the
destruction of the crematorium was not so important,
beczuse the Germans were in such s hurry to kill at the
time that the crematorium couldn't fulfill...fulfill -
there were too many people to be kxilled, and they had
to kill them in big pits, at the time, you know,
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But why 4o you write to McCloy that you'earmnestly

hepe!that he will pead the reports$

Beczuse we hoped that it would nuve a...s5trong emotion:

emotional effect on him.

Sut were you sure that he would resu 117

Ve asked him {to read it. Were we sure he would read

it? I wouvld assume he would, ves.

Did he?

I don't know.

You think he d4id?

1 assume so.

Yég?

S50 we recommended that this be concgidered and that

rot oniy the crematoris be bombed, but the factorids

ajeining the crematoria be bombed too.

And what wa.o the answexr of seCloy?to this letter?

That was November 8th, snd on november 18 we obtained

a negative reply fro- iwr. MeCloy. be refers to our

letter, he ssid that #the operation stuff of the

#ar Deparitment has given careful coansideration to
sugsestion that the bonbing of tuese camps be

undaeriaken., The following points were brought up:

1. positive destruction of these camps would necee-

ssitate precision bombing employing heavyg o1 umedium

bombardment or attack by low flying or dive bombing

alrcralts, preferably the letter. lhe target is

beyond wthe maximum range of medium bombard.aent, dive

bomnbers or fighter boubers.located in the United ya

Kingdom, Fronce or Italy. Use of heavy bowmbardment

from the United Kingdoia Bases would necessitate a

hazardous round ftrip fiight, unescorted, of app~

roxinately 2,000 miles over ernemy territory."

fes, but what is interesting is that this letter is

from the 18 of November, '44, ang there were already

two bébhings of the factory plants of LG Farben in

Auschwitz, in Auvgust and Sepbtember. This means that

it's not beyong the renge of thea.s.0f the hea¥y:

?8%h%§e ta*kg%i Eggﬁt bombing irom the United Kingdom?



Pehle Bob., 329-30 - 38

or from Italy?

ttaly.

Prom Itsly?

The Fifteenth Air Force, it was completely within the
range of the Pifteenth Air Porce,

Thet's whaet I understand now. e didn't know that at
that time. In any event, the Wal Department said it
was not feasible. "Based on the'@bove as well am on
the most uncertain if not dangerous effect such g
bombing would have on the objective to bé attained,
fhe war Department found it should not, at least for
the present, undertalke these Operati§ns".

Did he say that Be has read the report in this lebtar

No, it doesn't say that and the enclosure is the

report, which looks like it fame backa.

“e sent you back the report, yes. Zitell you frankly

ﬁhat I think, Because I have seen McCloy and I am

not sure he...he has read the report.

BOBINE 330
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I think that one of the..,not one, but that the basie
idea wag to concentrate everytning on the war effort,
and whici leaded to the idea that rescue of the psopl:
couldn't be possible only throwmgh the vietory, that
everything had to be done in o7der t0e..%0 get compled
victory and that afterwards the people would be saved,
But it h=d proven to be untrue, as a matter of fact,
vecause the victorg was...happened, and there was neve:
a doubt,let's say starting in 42, about the issue., Bui
in what regards the destruection of the Jews, it was toc
late for then

That's true. To me thaot...the idea that everything is
subordinate to the war effort is most illustrated by
thie idea of unconditional surrender. This is something
thatIUL think President Roosevelt first initiasted as
our policy, and Churchill and Stalin agreed. There
would be no deals, and we would fight until Germany
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unconditionally surrendered. Ir retrospect, one couwls
conclude that not maki-~ »ny decls of zny xind, con-
tinved the war for & leio time, or a2t least for come
time, =nd that during...

wi You mean that the fauct that they refused to make any
deal, any compromise prolong- ted...

Al eceprohongated the war. shen we got to Japan, we did
maake arrangements. we zgreed that the Emperor continue
for example. In Cermany however, we took the position
that we had to have unconditional surrender. If it di¢
vrolonyg the war, and 1 believe it did, that means that
a lot of people died durine ths last months of the waz
beczuse we took this rocvition. *ut it's very similar
to the position of everything is subordinate to the
wor effort, nothing else shouwld be looked at.

£
(13

What de you mezn when you soy 2 1ot of people died
during the last monthe...

A: I nmemn,szoldiers died, my brother disd in France rathe:
late in the war and no one kncws whether the war woul
neve ended socner, if we wore willing te negotiate.

Wwe Yo

(¢h

s L underst:ad.walsypeuthisn..one could say that
tnpie sirengihensd too Yhi...leb's say the unity of

the Cormrne. They reoqoived omitod Hill 4tre end,
[

[
e
L 23

hetl's right.

e

T

Yes, but I think that +this idsology of rescue tarough
victory was a go0d arguenbni voo for the people who
were oncged, because therc wers, to any form of rescw
A: I don't suy to eny form of rescue, yourre now talking
swout gming military tirvops and squinment o rescue.
these psonle weren't necessargly scoying that private
organizations shouldn't conginue their operations,
that wmoney shouldn't tc sent in., vwe're talking now
ashout whether troops in uniform and airplones should
be used for this purpose.

Yes, but yBu taink that t.is could lend us TC thesea
again to the negotintionz with the Germans, a propos
the Hungerian Jews.

CNA i
A RAELT.
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And what is your position on this: letAs sa¥, the
missicn of Joel Brand, the exchange of goods against
maberial (?) for tre Gerrmoan wer effort, and later on
the dealing with...with 2zoney.

Well, as the war wore on, thera were various plans mads
coning out of Bwitzerlsnd generslly, rumours that we
could save people by negotriating with the Germans,

To bug people.

dnat?

To bry mpedple.

To buy peonle, to provide the Germans with trucks, bei
not & milivary vehicle, wut which they needed for mili
tary operations. The ~ED wai very cautious about this,
particularily since the ussicns were known to We ¥ery
susplcious of the vestern powers having any negotiatic
with the Jermans. 4nd...but we felt that by having the
negotiations indirectly, thxrough people in Switrerlané
we could delay, we could plzy for +time. And that's whs
we did. Je hod negotistions going on both for trucks
and for money cfter the wdr, in an effort to gain time
Yes, these were the Laly .la er—Bechers...

Tes, Saly gayer Was teee.a prominent Jewish merchant ir
owitzerland, very devoted "Wo anything that could be
done in this area, snd he was Intermedisry for some

of these negotiations.

But why - L would like to unferstand - because the Gep
Germans wasta metiter of fact wanted tc negotiate with
the Mma...m2jor Jewish crsanizztiong and throuvch them
witn ~ilet's say — tue Allled powers, and you never
yer could be introduced to them
's say, of thes..of the American
orgaintization, of...even Lhe #RB, ovut as the head of t

neruitted that Szly e
ag representumt of let

the “ewish owics Sonmunity .

ies. This iz vart of the hesitancy we had in this whole
dield of..ennot doing sonething that the Russiand wouwld
feel that they were being widercut.

ANd wieb 13 striking in these negotiations is that
Saly «ayer..ethe hands of Saly “ayer were tied,

To some extent I am sure thay were, Jjust like..d just
as there were no large amnounts of monev that changed
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chands, they were always talking about blocked funds,
to be paild after the woar,

G¢ The funds were always biocked?

Ay Thas's rignt.

Qe The m0ley Wi NEVETo o

At Thet's right. That...bthsat nobody was willing to pay
top Geimuen officdsls money theot could he used against
us in the wer.

s Bub whet do you tink, vecause it is a very difficult
guestion, do you bthink...wrat wes the reason, or the
reccons, for this offer of the Germans? Do you think
that they were serious? Jo-t 4id they want to achieve?
Zecause 1v has alvays been one trend of the Hazi
N01icy toeesto negotinte the Jews for money. They
started this in 1934, vwith the famous Rublee-~Schacht

ee.discussions. And it went on. It went on in Slovakisa

eissmandel,in 1942, ond afterwards in 1944 for

the Jews of Hungary, She Brond nission. What was these
bDu you vhink the Neri were serious?

At I thinlt thet towards the end, there were individula
Aegr tace top of “Ghe Moul hirerchy, who were looking f¢
their ownl sking and vrying te nreserve something for
alber the war. ’

@i fou buing this ic the rein Besson?

At Yes, yes, Oll yes.

Q: Yeo, it is prohably drue. e famous letter of Himmler
to hiw masseur, to flergssen, which is very astonishing,
Thic means thot you don't think that there would have
been o rezl pocsibility of resculing people through th

sloney borgzining?

(o

No, I don't think go.

You tidny 4t wieae dooned to failure?

&

well, it wi- nv had come delaying effect. You see, it

by
P
..

may nave hade..e vl the extznt that you endourage peor

negr the top of +the Wari hirarchy thot they night get

some pnenifit after the wer, it might slcw them down,
«s Nobody, nere, in this covntry, toolk this...nobody in

chaorge of the problen took this seriously, this offex
Az I don't think =o0.
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Q: This 1s...it is very difficult to answer. I think
it's an open question.

Al *erhups; Fesa

it Now, wbout the woys the Boord acted or tried to act-
what were the institutions or the personalities that
you tried to invelve.in the achievements of the
Board? PFor instaonce, wiaat did you do with the Red
Cross? International Red Cross, I mean.

At Iy recollection is thut we never got a gread deal
of assistance from thzs Intermational Red Cross.
Theye..nretty well stuyed away from this problem.

s wWhy%

As ilow you're asking peuple's motives and I don't know

;3 N@sypeople, it's inctitubiron.

A: Institvtions....l don't inow.

Wi owe know that at the befinaing they said that they
were dealing mostly with the wmar prisoners, and
not with the civil internces, that this was a quest
of internal policy in which they couldn't be involv
But I know that you...you appegled rather frantical

BOBINE 331 -
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Wi Did The WRB try ¥0....p20000.
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we Pid the WRB try to engoge bthe Vatican and the Pope
more actively as they...they did before in the...u

41 My recolleftion is that we did try to get the Pope
to issue warnings, but that we never were verj
succes€ful in getting sny ctrong action in this
regard.

w: Yes, how idd you try to get 1it?

A: 1 thinls we had o nmeeting with the Apostolic belegati
here, and we also tried toe unofficial representati
which the US government had in Rome at one pointess

s Tittman,
At Tittmen, yes. Bub we never got much encouragemente.
Qs Yes, What kind of statement did they deliver, if én;
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I can't recall, except that I didn't think it was ver)
effective. '

{es. And, now another cuestion which is commected with
what you huave said already, that if a great number of
Jews would have been rescued, it would have been very
difficult fto take them .nd bto give them =zn asylun, This
~ you lmow the famous cuobrition of Lord Moyne about the
Llungarian Jews, the Brard nission, Wh%n he met Brand
znd vrend saids I come (znd we don't discuss now whethe
it was real or not, beczuse as you say, one cannot knov
But Brand said to Lord Moyne: can free from the Nazi

I
grip one million Jews. we can save one million Jews.

[

5

4nd Lord Moyne an:swered: whit shall I do with one
million Jews? which was a cynical answer, but a politic
political one, becauses it... it poses the problen, as

a matter of factl And I think {that there was 7z similar
prowvlem, here, with the resettlement areas -~ where 4o
vyt then if there had been any rescue?

Basically the WRB took the attitude that ve would worry
about that when and if we could get pecple out, but our
concentration was going to be on gedting people out,
Now we did talk to %eriocus Latin Americrsn countries
about bhe willingness to accent reflugees, but the
weskness of our position was that the US wasn't taking
in any refugees to speal of, And so we nressed for

a2t least a token entry into the US without visas,
without compliance with the immigration laws; of g
token number. And we Gid bring in several hundred
people into an abandoned ~rmy camp at Oswego, N.Y.

This was with considerable difficulty and lot of people
aidn't like it.

Why?

Well, the labour unions werea't too haprny sbout addi-
tional people coming into the US to talks jobsean.

How many were they, the peonle?

This was just a token amount of sewersol hundred. Cther
reople for their own reasons didn't want the lmmigratior
laws broken down, but we did it, =nd ultinately those
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people were admitted to the US as resicents.

But they came from where?

From BEurope.

2ut, I mean, were they people who were actuzlly
savel Dy the.e..rescued by this proposal or were %
- e ewWere they alreudy saved?

They were already...they were already saved, butee.
They were not in dangery

No, but it was important, we felt,and I feel, for
vihhe U3 o show bthut 16 too would take in people
above the ordianry immigration amounts. And that's
why we did it.

Tnis wes what was called the Free Ports?

Yes, 1t was...someone inveniced the theory, which
makes a lot of sense, tihaai #f we fan have o free
port for goods, in which you brought goods into t.
US but they weren'ts regarded as being in the US a
thnerefore they didn't pay duby and they couvld rem
in the free port, that thalt could be anplied %o
refugees t00. Actually I think that these people
a matter of fact came from North Africa.

Maybe, that could be.

Uriginslly they camne froﬁ nurope, they were alres
in Horth Africasss.

Yes.

1

»esand they found that the climate of N.Y. state
wiag very cold.

O, no, it's @ very colid and unpleucant nlace 50 1
in,

Yes. Tu coups....0n va reprend

PEHLE 58

what do you thinik of this arguement, which I find
myself rather strons, which wos brought up by the
afvocetes of the...of rescue, they said that thes.
there ware in the US about 150,000 German prisomner
of war which had been shipped from Britain.zaind b

say - and this was szid already in the Brrmuds
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Conference by the only Jewish observer, George Backer
from the doint, during the discusszions he said: but
please, if therc would be much more prisomners of war,
you would find places W keep them, at least for the
duration of the war. and how 1s it possible that you
cannot decide that you would sccent Jewhshrrefugees?
I think that that goes back te what we have already
been discussing, The »rasorners of war that were
brougnt in from fnzland, were brought to aleviate the
problem th=t the British hnsd. They were fighting and
were heving a very difficult time. Yhis wes directly
conne cted with the war effort. The War bepartment just
brought them in, no gquestion of this. People had
different feclings zbout refugeces +than they had =bout
prisoners of war, However, ironical that now seens.
Now enother question: what is...what was at the time
your feeling towards the Jews, I mean towards..s.there
were many Ydewish orgunizobtions which were rather not
unitedes s

No.

o Tighting among thomselves, and what did you think
of this%? ,

“ell, to the extent thet we...weldeget conflicting
advice from them, it was 5 little disconcerting. On
the whole though, we found that working with the JDG,
The Joint Distribution Cormkttee, worked out very
wells. They were professionals, they were less emotional
they weren't intersted ir Zionism in particular....
They were not?

No. They were just interested in rescuing neople. They
nad money and they had experienced people and they
wWereess . they fitted intoc our operations very well.

and what do you think...what d&d vou think of Zionists
at the time?

we didn't have any pmrbticular Teeling ~boubtZionism.
Yes, but the fact thot hreyees.

the fact that there was no none =id nlace for Jews

to go, obviously complicated the whole situation a
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great deal.
Ws ?&s, but we know that slonists were advocating mostly

Palestine.

Q: This waseeesbhere are pzonle who raproach them that
they...1f the Jews couldnbdé bevedved TandPaléstine,
they were not d&ntmuch intereskd in the...in the saving

A2 T.o..1 never felt thaet wayld

w3 COUDsseelors toune. o, 10, I just look at you.

<2 Bub you had al Lot ofe...0f dezlings with the very
religious Jews, with the :abbis, with the orthodox?

%4t tes, this was a revelation to me, because I'd never

bean exposed to this before. I resmember particularily
Rabbi “=lnanowiivz, who made very many visits to my
office, always unannounced.

Qi “e was the head of the Vasd Hahazalahe

A: teg,

W2 esavhe religious rescue orgsnization,.

At Hde was a very emotionszl max, with o long beard, and
ne would come to ny office, and pull his beard snd
CTY .

& Cry?

As Cried, oh yes. This was very bhard to take, And he
used to pester seceelary sorgenthau and wait in his
office, in the outer cfiice, to see the secrebary.
Anid he pressed very hard. He had particular interest
es I recell, in a groupr of orthodom rabbis who escaped
from ioland, crossed Chinc...crossed Russia and into
Clilng,; wad were in Shanghsi. #nd he wanted them
brought to the US, and pernatuate orthodoxye. and we
bad other things thet e felt werc more pressing,
but he dida't understand that.

Wt de didn*s?

A: No.

Q: And why did he cry?
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A: e cried because nothins wos being secomplished and
felt his world waz crumbling.

:3-‘
(0]

;¢ His world?

Ay That': wy exvnlanation.

Wi “nd 4id he medt orgenthau too?

At Oh yes, sures. Bul largely he declt with me.

W: Tes. But, I aesn, these neovle wers extremely active,
nov

As O yes, yes, they presced very hard for anything that
could be done, and they hed o lot of icdeas of wmhat
might be done, some of them unreal, bub we dealt with

e

thnen as best we covld

ks dWhnt kindg of Idcas?t
Ay Well, thcy...they wentdd o send morey through

-

vwitzerlend to rescue individusl peovle thet were
nuited in @ cable, And wo muckh for rescuing this famdil;
=:d gc mueh for rescuiug thet family. snd we said: no,
you couldn't do that.

s whyo

A3 secause we vuought that rescue kod 0 be done...in

gercral, by who ever wao avolluable to be rescued, not
0y now much could could be zent For cachh ONCes.

G2 Yes. sub whaee.eno, it's very ianteresting becuuse this
1oesethls was tonein wuy cof...of thinking. They wanted
TO TESCUE SPess s

Al Rzvbis.

Lt hebbiSeose

: les, rabbis and Sheir famili.s, particularily, yes.

Wi Qhie weteesthis was realiy their main cencern, what
Vhey didn't want (o rescue siybody WhO.ee?

A: Now you're wuking me Lo read taclr nminds. I can only
vell you tuat their cupnwsis cdeued to be in rescuing
Pabbls and toelr Toallies,

Qs Yeuw.

A notes..that stabement nay Le even wafudir to them. But
they didesethey did nove » peal ioterest in tuis.

Lt whFy Co you say thst theis...bhiey were unreal ideas$

A well, it'e like the idea wthat wes put to the wWar
Department in which it was proposed - tais was by
the World Jewish CongresSsSes.
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They were not relirsious, this one.
, T lmov...thks....I »m not aining this et the
relisious end, I am talking =bout some unreal sug-

gestionsy, one of them was thot the Soviet Governemnt

be avproached with the reauest throt it should disnatel

grouns of paratrouners to seize the buildings of the
cremetoria, to annihilate the souads of murderers

and free the unfortunnte inmntes. and that the Folish
government be recuested ~nd instruct .he Polich
wdergrovAd to attack these and similar camns to

destroy the instruments of death.

3ut why do s2y thot it is uvnreal?

Well, in the first place the 3oviet governemnt was nol

involved in rescuins Jewes, it was involved -rimerily
in defendins their own land, and there were millions
of Russi=zns being killed by the Germene ~nd there was
never eny interest they had in the activities of
the WRE for cuite understandable reasons.

They were ébsolutely uninterested in the wRB?
Thet's right.

you had no conmmunications with them?

Not thet I re....as I recell, agbassador Herman told .

‘me not to bother to take,this up with the Russians,

because they were completely preoccupnied by their
own problems. Similerily the Polish undergpound I
don't think was this effective in...in doing}the
things that #he Polish underground would normally
try to do, and ask them to attsck these camps was: .

-

out of the question too.
That was not *-e...

not real.
...n0t the concern of the Poligh underground. Wait

a minute.

60 mlan muet.



